
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader


PUBLIC LIBRARY funding in DANE Co.

Stoughton City Council

October 10, 2023





WHO PAYS FOR LIBRARY SERVICES?

$632,350





2023 budgeted



2021 budgeted	

DANE COUNTY SERVICE FEES	OTHER COUNTIES SERVICE FEES	MISC. GENERAL REVENUE	FINES	COPY MACHINE 	&	 PRINTS 	TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND	249910	14979	1000	4000	2500	735107	



WHO USES LIBRARY SERVICES?







DANE CO. LIBRARY SERVICE FEES

Paid annually to each library based on use by residents and non-residents



Calculated using cost-per-circulation (CPC): Total expenditures/Total Circulation



Dane Co. pays at 100% of CPC (70% required by state law)





COUNTY LIBRARY STANDARDS

Six standards:

Open hours

Staff (as FTE)

Public Internet computers

Materials expenditures

Total items owned

Total items added

Minimums based on municipal population





MINIMUM APPROPRIATION

The amount a municipality must appropriate to a public library to claim exemption from the county library tax under state statute 43.64(2)(b)



Calculated based on equalized value of property





MINIMUM APPROPRIATION







MINIMUM APPROPRIATION





Dane Co. Minimum Appropriation for Stoughton, 2016-2024



2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	364207	328653	438041	477865	492780	460838	494554	495102	572090	





MINIMUM APPROPRIATION









SUPPORT PER CAPITA
(Municipal appropriation/Resident population)





2022 Resident Support Per Capita



Sun Prairie Public Library	Marshall Community Library	Stoughton Public Library	DeForest Area Public Library	Cambridge Community Library	Mazomanie Free Library	Middleton Public Library	Oregon Public Library	Mount Horeb Public Library	Deerfield Public Library	Fitchburg Public Library	E.D. Locke Public Library	Madison Public Library	Rosemary Garfoot Public Library	Monona Public Library	Verona Public Library	Black Earth Public Library	Waunakee Public Library	Belleville Public Library	45.958855866689575	45.99279683990396	46.858168761220824	48.701298701298704	50.059340871750265	50.103027084439724	55.325789160214413	57.711701081612588	62.201690	821256037	62.586206896551722	62.908729478698973	65.276121444201308	69.021003247924938	69.249231371015057	70.836615423707286	72.935540506646603	73.205995820607626	91.479315263908703	104.33278350515464	





image1.png



image2.png



image3.emf

Municipality2023 min.2023 actual% of min.


Belleville83,775.00$          326,233.00$        389%


Black Earth56,969.00$          133,657.00$        235%


Cross Plains153,504.00$        304,803.00$        199%


Deerfield93,607.00$          172,927.00$        185%


Marshall100,589.00$        184,000.00$        183%


Waunakee810,139.00$        1,362,123.00$    168%


Oregon530,572.00$        892,047.00$        168%


McFarland444,477.00$        733,000.00$        165%


Madison12,066,936.00$  19,806,904.00$  164%


Fitchburg1,358,271.00$    2,170,815.00$    160%


Mount Horeb318,871.00$        506,477.00$        159%


Stoughton495,102.00$        735,107.00$        148%


Cambridge72,974.00$          105,000.00$        144%


Deforest494,906.00$        680,003.00$        137%


Mazomanie69,188.00$          95,000.00$          137%


Monona541,549.00$        673,051.00$        124%


Sun Prairie1,499,609.00$    1,830,829.00$    122%


Middleton1,382,889.00$    1,409,912.00$    102%


Verona1,176,822.00$    1,176,822.00$    100%









PUBLIC LIBRARY 
FUNDING IN DANE CO.


Stoughton City Council


October 10, 2023







WHO PAYS FOR LIBRARY SERVICES?


$632,350


25%


2%0%0%0%


73%


2023 budgeted


DANE COUNTY SERVICE FEES OTHER COUNTIES SERVICE FEES MISC. GENERAL REVENUE


FINES COPY MACHINE & PRINTS TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND


$735,107


$249,910


$14,979







WHO USES LIBRARY SERVICES?







DANE CO. LIBRARY SERVICE 
FEES


•Paid annually to each library based on use by 
residents and non-residents


•Calculated using cost-per-circulation (CPC): 
Total expenditures/Total Circulation


•Dane Co. pays at 100% of CPC (70% required by 
state law)







COUNTY LIBRARY STANDARDS


•Six standards:
•Open hours


•Staff (as FTE)


•Public Internet computers


•Materials expenditures


•Total items owned


•Total items added


•Minimums based on municipal population







MINIMUM APPROPRIATION


•The amount a municipality must 
appropriate to a public library to claim 
exemption from the county library tax 
under state statute 43.64(2)(b)


•Calculated based on equalized value of 
property







MINIMUM APPROPRIATION







MINIMUM APPROPRIATION


 $-


 $100,000.00


 $200,000.00


 $300,000.00


 $400,000.00


 $500,000.00


 $600,000.00


 $700,000.00


2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


Dane Co. Minimum Appropriation for Stoughton, 2016-2024







MINIMUM APPROPRIATION
Municipality 2023 min. 2023 actual % of min.


Belleville 83,775.00$          326,233.00$        389%


Black Earth 56,969.00$          133,657.00$        235%


Cross Plains 153,504.00$        304,803.00$        199%


Deerfield 93,607.00$          172,927.00$        185%


Marshall 100,589.00$        184,000.00$        183%


Waunakee 810,139.00$        1,362,123.00$    168%


Oregon 530,572.00$        892,047.00$        168%


McFarland 444,477.00$        733,000.00$        165%


Madison 12,066,936.00$  19,806,904.00$  164%


Fitchburg 1,358,271.00$    2,170,815.00$    160%


Mount Horeb 318,871.00$        506,477.00$        159%


Stoughton 495,102.00$        735,107.00$        148%


Cambridge 72,974.00$          105,000.00$        144%


Deforest 494,906.00$        680,003.00$        137%


Mazomanie 69,188.00$          95,000.00$          137%


Monona 541,549.00$        673,051.00$        124%


Sun Prairie 1,499,609.00$    1,830,829.00$    122%


Middleton 1,382,889.00$    1,409,912.00$    102%


Verona 1,176,822.00$    1,176,822.00$    100%







SUPPORT PER CAPITA
(Municipal appropriation/Resident population)


$0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $60.00 $80.00 $100.00 $120.00


Sun Prairie Public Library


Marshall Community Library


Stoughton Public Library


DeForest Area Public Library


Cambridge Community Library


Mazomanie Free Library


Middleton Public Library


Oregon Public Library


Mount Horeb Public Library


Deerfield Public Library


Fitchburg Public Library


E.D. Locke Public Library


Madison Public Library


Rosemary Garfoot Public Library


Monona Public Library


Verona Public Library


Black Earth Public Library


Waunakee Public Library


Belleville Public Library


2022 Resident Support Per Capita








City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI 53589 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing the future acceptance of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Forest Fire 
Protection Grant funds pending review of the final grant agreement terms by the appropriate City 


staff. 


Committee Action: Finance Committee recommended approval ___ on 10/10/2023 


TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


Fiscal Impact: $14,095 - $7,047.50 Grant Funding and $7,047.50 City Match 


File Number: R-161-2023 Date Introduced: October 10, 2023 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Fire Department is requesting authorization to accept grant funds 
from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for wildland gear and replacement of the tank and 
pump unit on the Department’s 6-wheeled ATV pending review of the final grant agreement terms by the 
appropriate City staff; and 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Fire Department has funds allocated in the 2023 Capital 
Improvements Plan (CIP) budget, $14,095 of which will be covered through this grant; and 


WHEREAS, the Fire Department has submitted the application and has received notification that the 
grant has been awarded, per the terms of the grant; and 


WHEREAS, your Finance Committee met on October 10, 2023 and recommends authorizing the City 
of Stoughton Fire Chief to act on the behalf of the City of Stoughton to accept grant funds from the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for wildland gear and replacement of the tank and pump unit 
on the Department’s 6-wheeled ATV pending review of the final grant agreement terms by the appropriate 
City staff. 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Common Council authorizes the 
City of Stoughton Fire Chief to act on the behalf of the City of Stoughton to accept grant funds from the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for wildland gear and replacement of the tank and pump 
unit on the Department’s 6-wheeled ATV pending review of the final grant agreement terms by the 
appropriate City staff. 


Time sensitive item as per the attached email from the Fire Department dated 09/27/2023. 


Council Action:         Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:        Accept    Veto 


Mayor Tim Swadley Date 


Council Action:          Override Vote to







1


Dave Ehlinger


From: Joshua Ripp
Sent: Wednesday, September 27, 2023 10:29 AM
To: Dave Ehlinger; Tim Swadley
Subject: DNR Grant


Good Day, 
 
I have received word we did receive the DNR grant for this time around. Can we get this on the next Finance Committee 
and City Council agendas ?  I have to get back to them by October 15.  
 
Joshua Ripp 
Fire Chief 
Stoughton Fire Department 
MABAS WI Vice President 
Desk 608-646-0427 
Cell    608-719-7606 
JRipp@cityofstoughton.com 
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/48571be6/UxV4g1kZ2kGR1tmGML2jhg?u=https://ci.stoughton.wi.us/fire 
 





















		11 R-xxx-2023 Acceptance of WI Dept of Natural Resources Forest Fire Protection Grant.pdf

		11a Memo Style.pdf

		20231005150505813.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing the Mayor and City Attorney to investigate the feasibility, process, and risks of 
transferring ownership of the rail spur tracks in the north industrial park from Stoughton Industrial 
Development Corporation (defunct) to the City of Stoughton. 


Committee 
Action: 


 


Fiscal Impact: TBA 


File Number: R-162-2023 Date 
Introduced: 


October 10, 2023 


 
RECITALS 


 
WHEREAS, during the mid-1960's, the City of Stoughton (City) owned and developed an area at 
Williams Dr. and N. Page St. to serve industry; and 


WHEREAS, during this time, the City of Stoughton partnered with local business interests to form the 
Stoughton Industrial Development Corporation (SIDC) for the purpose of promoting the industrial park 
and attracting industry to the community; and 


WHEREAS, as part of the joint industrial development program carried out by the City and SIDC, a rail 
spur was constructed in 1969 under contract with SIDC, which became the owner of the spur tracks and 
through an Industry Track Agreement, responsible for its maintenance and upkeep; and 


WHEREAS, during the intervening years, the SIDC was dissolved, but its asset - the rail spur never 
transferred to other ownership; and 


WHEREAS, the rail spur tracks serving the industrial park have fallen into disrepair and require 
improvements. The scope, timing, and cost of the work will be discussed at a future meeting. Such work 
cannot commence without an Industry Track Agreement with the provider of rail service - Wisconsin 
Southern Railroad, operated by WATCO and they require a viable owner to sign such an agreement; 
and 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 
authorizes the Mayor and City Attorney to investigate the feasibility, process, and risks of transferring 
ownership of the rail spur tracks in the north industrial park from Stoughton Industrial Development 
Corporation (defunct) to the City of Stoughton; and  


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor, Finance Director and City staff are authorized to 
investigate the scope, cost, and timing of the rail spur repairs. 







Council Action:  Adopted   Failed  Vote ________________________ 
 
  
Mayoral Action:    Accept   Veto 
 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
Mayor Tim Swadley      Date 
 
Council Action: ______________   Override Vote ___________________________  


  


  





		CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

		Council Action:  Adopted   Failed  Vote ________________________

		Mayoral Action:    Accept   Veto

		____________________________________________________________

		Mayor Tim Swadley      Date

		Council Action: ______________   Override Vote ___________________________






 
October 4, 2023 


Report to City Council on Business Park North Rail Spur 


The rail spur serving the north industrial park has degraded to the point that Wisconsin Southern 
Railroad can no longer provide service to the industrial park without incurring approximately $900,000 in 
repairs. B&G Foods relies on the rail to receive the raw material to manufacture Cream of Wheat. 


The rail spur is owned by the Stoughton Industrial Development Corpora�on (SIDC) who is responsible 
for maintenance and repair of the spur tracks under agreements entered around 1970 with the Railroad. 
Unfortunately, SIDC no longer exists, although those agreements indicate the SIDC was ac�ng on behalf 
of the City of Stoughton, who owned and developed the industrial park.  


WATCO is the operator of the Wisconsin Southern Railroad which owns and operates on the tracks 
serving Stoughton. WATCO is asking the City of Stoughton to assume ownership of the spur track from 
SIDC and make the repairs needed. WATCO claims the City could secure funding from WisDOT to pay for 
up to 80% of the repair costs. The City is in the process of amending TID #6 and has included TIF funding 
for a reasonable match that might be needed for a grant. 


If the City took over ownership, it would need to enter into an Industry Track Agreement (ITA) with 
WATCO. The City in turn would enter into a track maintenance agreement with B&G Foods to pass along 
all future costs associated with the rail spur. WisDOT has provided us with a sample agreement to do 
this. There is no other organiza�on available to take this on as B&G Foods has expressed no interest in 
owning the spur tracks. 


WATCO provided the following informa�on about the benefits to the City: 


“In reference to the public costs, roads vs. rail – there are many public benefits that freight rail provides 
to communities: 


• For every 1 rail car we move, we take 4 trucks off our state and local roads.  Without rail service 
to Stoughton, it would require hundreds of trucks to bring in raw materials and finished 
products to the park. 


• Environmentally, rail is superior to trucks.  Our typical locomotives are getting almost 485 miles 
per gallon of diesel fuel for every 1 ton we haul.  We have much less emissions than our trucking 
competitors. 


• As industrial parks grow and prosper, rail industries employ very good paying jobs providing 
great benefits. 


• For more information on short line railroads, you can always 
visit https://www.aslrra.org/advocacy/short-line-overview/” 


 
The ques�on before the City Council is should the City of Stoughton take ownership of the rail spur in the 
north industrial park? Our recommenda�on is that the City assume formal ownership of the rail spur, 
enter into an Industry Track Agreement with WATCO, enter into a track maintenance agreement with 
B&G Foods and any other future users and apply to WisDOT for funding to make the needed repairs.  



https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.aslrra.org%2fadvocacy%2fshort-line-overview%2f&c=E,1,43E1AphaH1mL3m-DWK06OaK39guBFdGl37pf5rdtFz6B0OKwJBICeg1lkxHPXUJIJfBbksT7LrI6uD5_aEWVe1T9wbBDr26vSqNd61MvZTye1kc,&typo=1





 


 







 
 


 







 


 


  







 


  







 
Background 


On January 11, 1966, the Stoughton City Council passed a resolu�on to sell a 2.815-acre parcel 
in the Industrial Park to Midwest Sales, Inc., an automo�ve parts business for $1,400 per acre. 
There were several condi�ons to the sale: 


• Midwest Sales must construct a building suitable for assembling, manufacturing, 
storage, and wholesale sales within 2 years with a right to repurchase. 


• In the event a railroad siding may become necessary as evidenced by writen request of 
the City of Stoughton, Midwest Sales shall grant “an easement to the city or so such 
other party as the city directs for the purpose of such railroad siding”. 


• City shall have un�l June 1, 1966, to remove stockpile of black soil on the land. 


On July 30, 1969, the Stoughton Industrial Development Corpora�on (SIDC) entered into an 
agreement with Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul, and Pacific Railroad Company. Highlights include: 


• SIDC paid $9,208. 
• The SIDC is described as “Developer” and “Industrial promoter for the owner” – City of 


Stoughton in the development of an industrial park. 
• The intent was to make railroad service convenient to industry through the construc�on, 


opera�on and maintenance of track or tracks as shown on map. 
• Map indicates the proposed rail spur would be “Owned by industry, maintained by 


industry, at industry’s expense”. I believe the meaning of this language is that it would 
not be owned by the railroad. SIDC is a proxy for “industry” as it relates to this spur 
track. 


• SIDC secure all necessary easements from private lands; 
• SIDC at its sole cost shall prepare the sub-grade and install the drainage for construc�on 


of the rail spur. Railroad shall, at SIDC sole cost furnish the engineering, labor, material to 
install the tracks and accessory equipment and “therea�er, at like expense and in like 
manner shall maintain, repair, and renew Track “A-B” (railroad owned track sec�on at 
junc�on with main line). 


• SIDC shall at its sole cost and expense, furnish the engineering, labor, and material for 
and shall lay, ballast and surface track “B-C” as well as install the crossing and, 
therea�er, at like expense and in like manner shall maintain, repair and renew Track “B-
C” and the crossing.” Such work shall be to Railroad standards. 


• SIDC shall pay to the Railroad from �me to �me the cost of keeping Track “A-B” free and 
clear and SIDC shall itself keep Track “B-C” free and clear. 


A supplemental agreement entered into on October 27, 1971, between the same par�es: 


• Railroad willing to reimburse SIDC for the $9,208 cost for construc�ng Track “A-B” 
(Railroad owned track). 







 
• At the end of each month following construc�on of Track “A-B”, SIDC shall bill the 


Railroad Company for an amount equal in dollars to ten �mes the number of loaded cars 
handled over the track for the industries who have constructed service tracks. Such 
refunds shall be paid un�l they total $9,208 or five years has elapsed, unless extended 
another 5 years. 


On August 15, 1975, the Railroad entered into an agreement with SIDC (Developer) and Zapata 
Kitchens, Inc (now B&G Foods) (Industry) to provide rail service: 


• The Industry agrees to make all payments herein provided within twenty days a�er bills 
are rendered. 


• Railroad may discon�nue all service to the Industry upon said track and terminate this 
agreement in the event the obliga�ons of SIDC for the maintenance of such track are not 
fulfilled, or if the Railroad for any reason discon�nues opera�on upon said track, or if 
the Industry shall refuse to keep and perform any of its obliga�ons or cease to use said 
track. 


• SIDC is made a party to this agreement solely for the purpose of giving consent to having 
the Railroad serve the Industry upon and over said track which it owns. 


• It is understood and agreed that the Industry shall arrange, without expense to the 
Railroad, to prepare the grade and furnish the necessary drainage for Track “A-B” and 
arrange to furnish the engineering, labor and material for, and shall lay, ballast and 
surface Track “A-B”, including the installa�on of wheel stops. 


• Industry shall maintain, at its own sole cost and expense, the car floor height pla�orm, 
and a track pit with appurtenances. 


On August 31, 2022, Rodney Scheel received a leter from WATCO, the descendant of the 
Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul, and Pacific Railroad Company expressing a desire to understand 
the descendant of the defunct Stoughton Industrial Development Corpora�on, the owner of the 
tracks in the Industrial Park, so that an Industry Track Agreement (ITA) can be updated with a 
new owner of record. WATCO would like the City of Stoughton to take over ownership of the 
track from SIDC, enter into an agreement (ITA) whereby the City would be responsible for track 
maintenance and repair costs.  


The leter iden�fies two users of the rail – Zalk Josephs and B&G Foods. Subsequent visits to 
each indicate that only B&G Foods is interested in on-going rail service. Visits to other industrial 
park tenants indicated no addi�onal interest in using rail. 


On December 12, 2022, Rodney received an email from WATCO transmi�ng a copy of an ITA, 
along with an inspec�on report, and a bid for the repair of the tracks owned by SIDC. The bid 
was $893,300. WATCO indicated that if the track was publicly owned it would qualify for 80% 
funding from WisDOT.  







 
We spoke with WisDOT (Rich Kozier) about the situa�on. WisDOT indicated this was a loan 
program not a grant. If there was industry expansion, it may be possible to secure a 50% grant 
through the TEA program. WisDOT provided examples of agreements with industry that passed 
along track maintenance and repair responsibility to the industry using the track. 


 


Historical and Forecasted Rail Spur Traffic 


 
Figure 1: Source - WATCO 








 
 


Please complete this application, along with such additional documentation and information you wish to supplement this 
application. 


 
APPLICANT INFORMATION 


 
Name:  Emmi Roth, USA, Inc.  


Mailing Address:  5525 Nobel Drive, Suite 100, Fitchburg, WI 53711  


Phone: 608-285-9817  Email:   


Legal Entity (check one):   Individual(s)   X Corporation   LLC   Partnership 


 Other:   


If not a Wisconsin corporation / partnership / LLC, state where organized:   


Will a new entity be created for ownership (check one)?   Yes   X No 


Principals of existing or proposed corporation / partnership / LLC and extent of ownership interests (add more 
pages, if necessary): 


 
Name Address Title Interest 


Tim Omer 5525 Nobel Drive, Suite 100, Fitchburg, WI 
53711 


Emmi Roth US CEO  


Nate Kieper 5525 Nobel Drive, Suite 100, Fitchburg, WI 
53711 


Emmi Roth US CFO  


Rob Fisher 5525 Nobel Drive, Suite 100, Fitchburg, WI 
53711 


Emmi Roth Special 
Projects Leader 


 


    


    


DEVELOPMENT TEAM 


Developer:   Architect:   


Surveyor:   Contractor:   


Other Members (add more pages, if necessary):     
 


 
Describe the Applicant and Development Team’s background, expertise, and experience in developing similar 
projects: Emmi Roth is a recognized leader in the specialty cheese industry. The project team has significant experience 
both in the United States and internationally in developing facilities for cheese-making, cheese processing, and ancillary 
assets for the company. The project team has undertaken comparable projects, for example, a new facility in Platteville, WI 
in 2015. 


 
City of Stoughton 


Tax Incremental Financing Application 







 
Format approved 03/28/2023 R-xxx-2023 







2  


 


CITY GOALS OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING 
 


The City has established goals for the use of tax incremental financing. Please indicate which goals you believe 
the proposed project advances. Select all that apply. If checked as applicable, please describe in further detail 
how the goal will be achieved. 


 
☐ Whether the proposed tax increment district or project assists in the implementation of the City’s 


Comprehensive Plan. Please describe: The project will accomplish goals within the Comprehensive Plan to 


accomplish industrial development in Industrial Park North and create jobs within the City of Stoughton.  


☐ Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would eliminate blight, redevelop underused lands, or 


provide suitable sites for industrial, commercial, or residential development. Please describe This project will 


further develop Emmi Roth’s property into state-of-the-art processing facilities. The property and surrounding 


properties have been identified as growth opportunities for the City of Stoughton specifically for industrial 


use. 


☐ Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase employment opportunities. Please 


describe: The facility expansion will allow for additional employment in Emmi Roth’s facility and continue 


to grow to meet the demand of their customers. Approximately 30-45 new jobs will be created as a result of 


the project. 


☐ Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase the property tax base. Please describe  
                   The 2023 assessed value of the parcel’s land is $684,400 and the improved value is $1,700,000,  
                   totaling $2,384,400. The current project’s total capital investment in real property will be $48,800,000 and total 
project costs of $82,100,000.  
 
Future expansion is expected to cost approximately $15-$25 million in real property improvements. 
 


☐ Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase the availability of a range of workforce 


housing options, including affordable housing. Please describe   
 
 
 


 


☐ Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would include sustainability measures that will promote 


a healthy environment, including measures to reduce climate change impacts. Please describe See attached 


presentation describing sustainability measures within the project. 


☐ Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would encourage unsubsidized private development. 


Please describe   
 
 


 
 







3  


PROJECT AND PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 


Address and / or Parcel Number(s) of proposed development: 1800 Williams Drive, Stoughton, WI   
 


Overall Project Summary and Objectives (include information describing the current and proposed zoning and uses of the 
site; description of end users; estimated jobs created; anticipated value created; consistency with TID project plan, City 
Comprehensive Plan, zoning ordinance, subdivision ordinance, and other City ordinances and policies as applicable; 
whether there has been or will be outreach to the public or neighborhood): 


Emmi Roth is currently under construction on a new US headquarters, cheese processing, and storage facility in Stoughton, 
WI. Upon completion, the facility will be 161,000 square feet of office and industrial space and will create 130 jobs. 
 
Emmi Roth is considering two additional components to the project. First, Emmi Roth is considering adding a solar array to 
the facility. Solar panels had been initially explored to meet corporate goals to become less carbon dependent, but the cost 
could not be justified. As solar panel costs have decreased, tax credits through the Inflation Reduction Act, and assistance 
from the City, the investment in solar panels has become more financially feasible. The anticipated cost of the solar array 
and associated infrastructure upgrades to support the panels is approximately $3.5 million. 
 
Second, Emmi Roth is considering future expansion of the facility. The future expansion would nearly double the square 
footage of the processing space and continue to scale as Emmi Roth grows. This expansion would occur in the next five to 
seven years, would add 30-45 additional jobs to the site, and cost approximately $15-$25 million.  
 
These projects accomplish goals stated within the City’s Comprehensive Plan and TID project plan. The Comprehensive 
Plan specifically calls out industrial development as a future land use within the areas in and surrounding the Business Park 
North. The Comprehensive Plan and TIF project plan specifically target job creation within economic development goals, of 
which this project accomplishes.  


For a project that contains housing, describe whether the project would increase the availability of a range of workforce 


housing options, including affordable housing. If the project will not increase the availability of affordable housing, explain 


why it does not, and explain whether the project could include affordable housing if the City provides additional TIF support. 
 


 
 
 


Describe whether the project would include sustainability measures that will promote a healthy environment, including 


measures to reduce climate change impacts. 


    See attached presentation describing sustainability measures within the project.  
 
 







4  


 
Describe the request for tax increment financing. 


Emmi Roth requests that the City provides up-front funding of $3.5 million to install a solar system. In addition, Emmi Roth 
requests a Pay-As-You-Go (PAYGo) TIF incentive with a value of $1.2 million and a 5% interest rate. The PAYGo TIF 
incentive shall be earned upon the completion of the expansion as a rebate of 100% of property taxes during the life of the 
TID until $1.2 million is received. 


“BUT FOR” TEST 


Why is the requested TIF funding needed? Explain why the project cannot proceed without such support? In addition, 
provide a complete description of the sources and uses of funding for the project. If land will be purchased for the project, 
please describe the purchase price, and supply any appraisal or other documentation available that provides information 
relating to the fair market value of the property. If you are paying more than fair market value for the property, please 
explain why. 


 There are two elements that satisfy the “but for” test. First, during initial design it was previously evaluated whether to 
include a solar array to the facility. Due to the return on investment and capital constraints the installation of solar panels 
was determined to not be economically feasible at that time.  


Second, Emmi Roth is currently considering how to address future demand and would be willing to commit to future 
expansion of the facility. While the expansion of the facility is not anticipated to occur within five to seven years, planning 
and forecasting will begin with an expectation of future expansion. Without a commitment of future support, Emmi Roth 
will continue to evaluate alternative solutions to support their future processing needs. This could be served by third-party 
processors or an alternative location could be considered. 


Should a TIF incentive not be provided, Emmi Roth would not install solar panels on site nor commit to future expansion 
of the facility. 


What economic benefits will result due to the development? 
 


Emmi Roth will invest approximately $3.5 million in the installation of solar array on site that reduces carbon dependent 
energy use helping both Emmi Roth and the City of Stoughton achieve their sustainability objectives. An additional 
investment of $15-$25 million in an expansion of the processing space will occur in five to seven years. This expansion will 
allow for an additional 30-45 jobs to be created.


 


 
 
 


What non-economic benefits will the development provide to the community? 


The installation of solar array on site that reduces carbon dependent energy use helping both Emmi Roth and the City of 


Stoughton achieve their sustainability objectives.  


 
 
 
 


 
 
 


FILING REQUIREMENTS 











T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2023\03-28-2023\Backup documents\3X85149-TIF Policy (3 23 
23).docx 
3/24/2023 12:19 PM 


 


City of Stoughton Policy 
for the Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts 


and the Approval of TIF Projects. 
 


1. Purpose. This policy has been prepared to assist the City in determining whether 
to create a Tax Incremental Finance District, and in determining whether to approve 
the use of Tax Incremental Financing for particular projects. The authority to 
approve the use of Tax Incremental Financing is vested solely in the City Council. 
The City reserves the right to reject any and all projects, including projects that are 
eligible for the use of Tax Incremental Financing, for any reason or no reason. The 
City Council reserves the right to approve or disapprove any project as it deems 
appropriate. 


 
2. General Goals for the use of Tax Incremental Financing. The City may consider 


whether a TIF District or a TIF project serves one or more of the following general 
goals when deciding whether to create a TIF District, or whether to provide TIF 
financing for a particular project: 


 
A. Eliminate blighting influences, redevelop underutilized lands, and provide 


suitable sites for industrial, commercial or residential development. 
B. Achieve or accelerate development on sites that would not be developed 


without the use of Tax Incremental Financing. 
C. Increase employment opportunities in the City. 
D. Increase the tax base for the City and other taxing jurisdictions. 
E. Assists implementation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
F. Provide workforce and affordable housing opportunities. 
G. Includes sustainability measures that will promote a healthy environment, 


including measures to reduce climate change impacts. 
H. Encourage unsubsidized private development in the City. 


 
3. TIF District Creation. 


 
A. TIF Districts will be created in accordance with the procedures and standards 


in Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, and as such statute may be amended. (See Appendix 
A - Department of Revenue TIF Creation Checklist). 


B. The City Council may, in individual cases, expand the process for creating a 
TIF District in such manner as it deems appropriate. 


 
4. TIF Project Approval. All TIF projects must be approved by the City Council, 


following review and report by the Finance Committee. The Finance Director shall 
provide a report to the Finance Committee and the City Council addressing 







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2023\03-28-2023\Backup documents\3X85149-TIF Policy (3 23 
23).docx 
3/24/2023 12:19 PM 


 


the following issues, which shall be considered by the Finance Committee and 
City Council before approving any TIF project: 


 
A. Is the project authorized by the Project Plan for the TIF District? 
B. Does the project serve one or more of the City’s general goals for the use of 


TIF? 
C. Is Tax Incremental Financing feasible, in that the TIF District will support 


the level of TIF investment? 
D. Is the amount of Tax Increment Financing requested reasonably necessary 


to make the project financially viable? 
E. Should a development agreement be required, and what terms should be 


included in the agreement? 
F. Is more process (such as additional public hearings or a referendum) 


appropriate? 
G. Such other factors as either the Finance Committee or the City Council 


deem appropriate. 
 


5. Permissive Referendum. Before the City may issue bonds or otherwise borrow 
funds that will be payable over more than 10 years to fund a TIF project, the City 
Council must first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to borrow the funds. If a 
number of electors of the city equal to at least 15% of the of the votes cast for 
governor at the last general election in the city sign and file a petition conforming 
to the requirements of Wis. Stat. § 8.40 with the city clerk requesting submission of 
the resolution, the City may not issue bonds or borrow funds for financing the TIF 
project without calling a special election to submit the question of bonding or 
borrowing to the city electors for their approval. 


 
6. Negotiations. City staff and the city attorney will negotiate development agreements 


within the parameters established by the City Council, and subject to final approval 
by the City Council. 


 
7. Suspension of Policy. This policy shall be followed in all cases, except where the 


common council approves deviating from this policy by a vote of two-thirds of all 
members of the common council. 







Emmi Roth- Stoughton Facility


Proposed Solar Project Review


August 30, 2023







Stoughton Solar Array- Proposed Layout


The Solar arrays would be located in 5 areas:


1) Roof of the Cold Storage warehouse


2) Roof of the Production/Conversion space


3) Roof of the office complex


4) Ground mounted system along the south 


employee parking lot


5) Small Trestle system on the employee 


patio


Two small Trestle 


system at the 


employee patio 


Ground mount system 


at the employee 


parking lot


Cold Storage rooftop 


system


Conversion Space 


rooftop systemOffice Complex 


rooftop system


5


4


3
2


1







Emmi Roth- Stoughton Solar Project Projected Cost


1. Complete turnkey design


2. Stamped structural engineering review


3. Zoning, building and electrical permits (City of Stoughton)


4. Utility Interconnection Application and engineering fees


5. Back-feed breakers, disconnects and other required fault protection


6. Labor and balance of system components


7. Fully grounded solar array


8. Fully Engineered and Stamped Electrical Design


9. PV module location as noted on preliminary layout drawing.


10. Full system commissioning


11. Construction facilities and equipment for the duration of the project.


12. Safety plan and safety management throughout construction


13. Design and installation of Fall Protection Safety System for Roof-


mounted arrays


14. Fall protection implementation throughout construction


15. Non-permeable, weather resistant ballast block


16. Directional boring for Spotlight Solar Trestle conductors


17. Egauge and inverter integrated monitoring


18. Cantilevered ground mount array


19. Directional boring to building connection point


20. Civil Engineering 


21. Owner training


Project Element Budgeted Cost 


($000s)


1160 kW Solar System $2,349


Design, building structural modifications, 


electrical, electrical controls, fall protection 


system, Egauge management system, 


project management


$1,124


Total project cost $3,474







Stoughton- Proposed Solar Panel Rack Installation







Stoughton- Consumption Vs. Generation


- 1363 GWh expected annual production


- At it’s peak performance period (July) the system will provide 


approximately 45% of our electricity requirements







Emmi Roth- Stoughton Solar Project- Representative Examples







Emmi Roth- Stoughton Solar Project- Egauge Management System (screenshot)


Egauge Management System:


- Digital Display


- Real-time system performance


- Provide historical performance 


over a variety of timeframes







Emmi Roth- Stoughton Solar Project Projected Environmental Impacts





		APPLICANT INFORMATION

		Principals of existing or proposed corporation / partnership / LLC and extent of ownership interests (add more pages, if necessary):

		DEVELOPMENT TEAM



		Describe the Applicant and Development Team’s background, expertise, and experience in developing similar projects: Emmi Roth is a recognized leader in the specialty cheese industry. The project team has significant experience both in the United State...

		CITY GOALS OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING

		PROJECT AND PROPERTY INFORMATION

		“BUT FOR” TEST

		FILING REQUIREMENTS

		AGREEMENT








Emmi Roth- Stoughton 
Facility


Proposed Solar Project 
Review


August 30, 2023







Stoughton Solar Array- Proposed Layout


The Solar arrays would be located in 5 areas:
1) Roof of the Cold Storage warehouse
2) Roof of the Production/Conversion space
3) Roof of the office complex
4) Ground mounted system along the south 


employee parking lot
5) Small Trestle system on the employee 


patio


Two small Trestle 
system at the 


employee patio 


Ground mount system 
at the employee 


parking lot


Cold Storage rooftop 
system


Conversion Space 
rooftop systemOffice Complex 


rooftop system


5


4


3
2


1







Emmi Roth- Stoughton Solar Project Projected Cost


1. Complete turnkey design
2. Stamped structural engineering review
3. Zoning, building and electrical permits (City of Stoughton)
4. Utility Interconnection Application and engineering fees
5. Back-feed breakers, disconnects and other required fault protection
6. Labor and balance of system components
7. Fully grounded solar array
8. Fully Engineered and Stamped Electrical Design
9. PV module location as noted on preliminary layout drawing.
10. Full system commissioning
11. Construction facilities and equipment for the duration of the project.
12. Safety plan and safety management throughout construction
13. Design and installation of Fall Protection Safety System for Roof-
mounted arrays
14. Fall protection implementation throughout construction
15. Non-permeable, weather resistant ballast block
16. Directional boring for Spotlight Solar Trestle conductors
17. Egauge and inverter integrated monitoring
18. Cantilevered ground mount array
19. Directional boring to building connection point
20. Civil Engineering 
21. Owner training


Project Element Budgeted Cost 
($000s)


1160 kW Solar System $2,349


Design, building structural modifications, 
electrical, electrical controls, fall protection 
system, Egauge management system, 
project management to accommodate solar 
array


$1,124


Total project cost $3,474







Stoughton- Proposed Solar Panel Rack Installation







Stoughton- Consumption Vs. Generation
Solar System Characteristics:
- 1160kW system


- Roof Mounted- ballasted rooftop system distributed on top of the cold 
storage, processing and office space roofs


- Ground Mounted- Eighty-two 475-watt bifacial modules
- Trestle System- Two 6.6kW sets  at employee patio


- Egauge monitoring system- delivers historic and real-time monitoring
- 1363 GWh expected annual production
- At it’s peak performance period (July) the system will provide approximately 


45% of our electricity requirements







Emmi Roth- Stoughton Solar Project- Representative Examples







Emmi Roth- Stoughton Solar Project- Egauge Management System (screenshot)







Emmi Roth- Stoughton Solar Project Projected Environmental Impacts








 


Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time: Tuesday, October 10, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 


Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom 
 https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82152929994?pwd=7fzboiGpjhVCmIH3d4ygMLSKB3exbc.1 
 Meeting ID: 821 5292 9994 Passcode: 845616 
 One tap mobile +13017158592,,82152929994#,,,,*845616# US (Washington DC)  
 In-person: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


              321 South Fourth St, Stoughton, Wisconsin  
 Live streamed:  


The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981.  The 
WSTO-TV app is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, Android and iOS. Note: Effective 
September 1, 2023, the TDS channel number for WSTO-TV is 981. 
 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, 
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher 
and Christina Wozniak Scanlon 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF THE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A 
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to 
attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at 
cchristen@cityofstoughton.com 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
1.  Roll Call  
 
2.  Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
 
3.  Public Comment Period: 


A. If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form and submit 
it by 6:30 p.m. on October 10, 2023, http://speak.cityofstoughton.com. 
 


4. Communications and Presentations: 
 A.  Downtown Tax Incremental District study report – Becker Professional Services 
       
          


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at 
the time and location given below. 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82152929994?pwd=7fzboiGpjhVCmIH3d4ygMLSKB3exbc.1

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:cchristen@cityofstoughton.com

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





 
5.  Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – September 26, 2023 
       B.  Committee Minutes and Reports:   
 Commission on Aging (8/01/23); Public Works (8/17/23) 
       C.  R-159-2023 Agent Change for Kwik Trip #738, 1231 E. Main St.  (PSC recommends approval 
 unanimously 9/27/23)  
                      
OLD BUSINESS    


6. R-122-2023 Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 141 of John 
Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5592538, Dane County 
Registry. (Utilities recommends approval 5-0) 
 
 NEW BUSINESS 


7. R-160-2023 Resolution Requesting Exemption from Dane County Library Tax (Library Board 
recommends approval 6-0)  
 
8. R-161-2023 Acceptance of WI Dept of Natural Resources Forest Fire Protection Grant (Finance 
Committee considering on October 10, 2023)    TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
      
9. Discussion and possible action regarding Downtown Tax Incremental District creation 
 
10. **R-162-2023 Transfer ownership of rail spur tracks in the north industrial park to the City of 
Stoughton** 
 
11. **Emmi Roth Tax Increment Financing request negotiations** 
 
12.  **RDA update –Brink contract negotiations**  
 
**The Common Council may convene in closed session per State Statute 19.85(1) (e) Deliberating or 
negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other 
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 
services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82152929994?pwd=7fzboiGpjhVCmIH3d4ygMLSKB3exbc.1 
 
Meeting ID: 821 5292 9994 
Passcode: 845616--- 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82152929994?pwd=7fzboiGpjhVCmIH3d4ygMLSKB3exbc.1





 
One tap mobile 
+13017158592,,82152929994#,,,,*845616# US (Washington DC)  
+13052241968,,82152929994#,,,,*845616# US 
 
Dial by your location 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
 
Meeting ID: 821 5292 9994 
Passcode: 845616 
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kpJoVzB3 
 
 



https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kpJoVzB3



		7. R-160-2023 Resolution Requesting Exemption from Dane County Library Tax (Library Board recommends approval 6-0)






 


Request for Council Guidance - Proposed Downtown TID 
The City of Stoughton recently received a tax increment financing (TIF) request to assist with the 
conversion of 211 Water St. from a light industrial use on the first floor and vacant second floor to 18 
apartment units in a structure that originally served as a two-story automobile showroom. The building 
currently has a light manufacturing use on the first floor – Virtual Foundry and a vacant 2nd floor.  


The City Council authorized both a financial review of the TIF request and planning for a new tax 
increment district (TID). Another TIF request may be in the works just a block away for conversion of 
another historic structure - the former Hotel Kegonsa, into upper-level residen�al units. Addi�onally, 
another dozen poten�al rehab/conversion or new construc�on opportuni�es have been iden�fied that 
could poten�ally be triggered by the availability of TIF. 


The first step in considering a TIF district to support such conversion projects is determining the 
appropriate type of TID to create and which agency will lead the TID planning process. There are four 
types of TIDs that may be created under ss 66.1105 based upon the qualifying condi�ons required to 
create them –industrial development, blight elimina�on and redevelopment, rehabilita�on and 
conserva�on work and mixed-use development. Given this is a downtown area and the topic is support 
for reuse of old structures for housing we can eliminate industrial development as a TID type for 
considera�on. Whichever type of TID is created, at least 50% of the parcels within the TID must meet the 
condi�ons to qualify for that TID type. 


TID types are also associated with a TID life. Industrial and mixed-use TIDs have a 15-year expenditure 
period and a 20-year life. Blight and rehabilita�on/conserva�on TIDs have a 22-year expenditure period 
and a 27-year life. 


The Wisconsin Department of Revenue provides criteria for establishing each type of TID. A summary of 
those criteria is at the end of this report. 


The City Council, in 2007, created the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton (RDA). In 
crea�ng the RDA, the City Council gave it the following authority: “The RA shall have the authority to 
create a redevelopment plan. The RA shall implement the reten�on and development ac�vi�es as 
iden�fied in any redevelopment plan(s) or other economic development plans created and approved by 
the City Council. The RA shall be responsible for regularly reviewing redevelopment or economic 
development plans and shall implement any changes or addi�ons to the plans approved by the City 
Council.” Addi�onally, the Council granted the RDA all powers granted by the State of Wisconsin under 
66.1333 (Blighted Area Law). No authority was granted to the RDA to plan a TID, which is normally done 
by the Plan Commission unless the City Council designates otherwise for blight elimina�on TIDs. 


City Council direc�on is needed regarding the type of TID to plan. Staff recommends planning for a 
rehabilita�on/conserva�on TID with the approximate boundary as shown on the atached map. We 
recommend the City designate the Plan Commission to plan the crea�on of the TID including the 
documenta�on of the condi�on of property rela�ve to need for rehabilita�on or conserva�on. 


  







 


Proposed Downtown TID 


 


Figure 1: Map indicates proposed TID boundary, potential projects identified through property owner interviews or visual 
observation, as well as historic landmarks. 54% of the TID includes property in need of rehab or conservation as indicated by the 
green-shaded parcels. 


  







 


Considera�on for a Blight TID 


A blight TID requires a formal finding of blight by the City Council and is based on a property evalua�on 
survey. Given that the area containing the projects under considera�on would generally not be 
considered a blighted area, individual proper�es may meet the defini�on for blighted property. For 
example, vacant second or third floor space is an example of obsolescence – the space can no longer be 
used for its intended purpose, which is a qualifying factor. Addi�onal proper�es may qualify based on 
deteriora�on or building safety viola�ons. Whether more than 50% of the proper�es in the area can 
qualify as blighted property is ques�onable. 


The benefit of a blight TID is its 27-year life and the range of project costs that can be incurred to 
eliminate bligh�ng condi�ons and promote redevelopment. 


The downsides include the need to label individual property as blighted, having the City Council make a 
formal declara�on of such, the extra no�fica�ons required to property owners, having a smaller TID 
because of the fewer parcels that are blighted, and the general s�gma associated with labeling a 
property as blighted. 


Considera�ons for a Rehabilita�on/Conserva�on TID 


A rehabilita�on TID requires the iden�fica�on of property in need of conserva�on or rehabilita�on and is 
based on a property evalua�on survey. This is generally a lower bar to achieve than mee�ng the 
standards in the defini�on for blighted property. Our example of vacant second or third floor space also 
qualifies us as in need of rehabilita�on or conserva�on. Addi�onal proper�es may qualify based on 
deteriora�on or building safety viola�ons. We have found that at least 54% of the area of the proposed 
downtown TID qualifies as in need of rehabilita�on or conserva�on and possibly as much as 75% 
pending conversa�ons with property owners. 


The benefit of a rehabilita�on/conserva�on TID is its 27-year life and that it is focused on rehabilita�on 
and conserva�on and not trying to address bigger underlying issues such as blight. Project costs 
associated with the rehabilita�on of older structures are exactly what this type of TID envisioned. 


The downsides include the need to label individual property as in need of rehabilita�on or conserva�on, 
and the extra no�fica�ons required to property owners. The s�gma associated with labeling a property 
as in need of rehabilita�on is much less the label of blighted. A rehabilita�on/conserva�on TID may be 
larger in area because the standard for “in need of rehab or conserva�on” is much lower than a finding 
that a property is blighted, thus more property could qualify. The TID boundary must contain at least 
50% of real property by area to meet the qualifying requirements. 


Considera�ons for a Mixed-use TID 


A mixed-use TID simply requires the presence of a mix of uses and the intent to maintain or change the 
mix of uses as long as no more than 35% of the parcels in the TID are not newly plated residen�al. There 
would be no newly plated residen�al parcels within the area under considera�on. No iden�fica�on or 
labeling of individual property is needed. Our example of vacant second or third floor space also qualifies 
for a mixed-use TID because the intent is to create housing in a generally commercial district, thereby 
promo�ng a mix of uses. All the proper�es in the study area would qualify to be in a mixed-use TID. 







 


The benefit of a mixed-use TID is its lack of significant qualifying requirements and the wide range of 
project costs that can be included to promote a mix of uses.  


The most significant downside is the shorter life (20-years vs 27-years) which impacts the amount of 
investment that may be made.  


 


Wisconsin Dept. of Revenue Guidance on TID Types 


Blighted area – areas in a damaged condi�on. TIF Law provides two specific meanings for the 
designa�on of blight.  


Defini�on 1: An area in which the structures, buildings or improvements contribute to ill health, 
transmission of disease, infant mortality, juvenile delinquency, or crime and are detrimental to 
the public health, safety, morals or welfare, due to dilapida�on, deteriora�on, age or 
obsolescence, inadequate provision for ven�la�on, light air, sanita�on or open spaces, high 
density popula�on and overcrowding, or the existence of condi�ons which endanger life or 
property by fire and other causes  


Defini�on 2: An area which is predominantly open and which consists primarily of an abandoned 
highway corridor as defined in sec . 66 .1333(2m)(a), Wis . Stats . or that consists of land on 
which buildings or structures have been demolished and because of obsolete pla�ng, diversity 
of ownership, deteriora�on of structures or of site improvements, substan�ally impairs the 
sound growth of the community. 


Blighted property means:  
Any property within a city, whether residen�al or nonresiden�al, which by reason of:  


• dilapida�on, deteriora�on, age, or obsolescence,  
• inadequate provisions for ven�la�on, light, air, or sanita�on,  
• high density of popula�on and overcrowding, or  
• the existence of condi�ons which endanger life or property by fire and other causes, or  
• any combina�on of such factors,  


is conducive to ill health, transmission of disease, infant mortality, juvenile delinquency, or crime, and is 
detrimental to the public health, safety, morals, or welfare, or  


Any property which by reason of:  
• faulty lot layout in rela�on to size, adequacy, accessibility, or usefulness,  
• insanitary or unsafe condi�ons,  
• deteriora�on of site or other improvements,  
• diversity of ownership,  
• tax or special assessment delinquency exceeding the fair market value of the land,  
• defec�ve or unusual condi�ons of �tle, or  
• the existence of condi�ons which endanger life or property by fire and other causes, or  
• any combina�on of such factors,  







 


substan�ally impairs or arrests the sound growth of a city, retards the provisions of housing 
accommoda�ons, or cons�tutes an economic or social liability and is a menace to the public health, 
safety, morals or welfare in its present condi�on and use, or  


Any property which is predominantly open and which because of: 
• obsolete pla�ng,  
• diversity of ownership,  
• deteriora�on of structures or of site improvements, or  
• otherwise, substan�ally impairs or arrests the sound growth of the community. 


Rehabilita�on or conserva�on work – to restore, preserve or repair. Defined for the purposes of TIF law 
in sec . 66 .1337, Wis . Stats ., rehabilita�on and conserva�on includes any of the following  


• Opera�ng a program of voluntary or compulsory repair and rehabilita�on of buildings or other 
improvements  


• Acquisi�on of real property and demoli�on; removal or rehabilita�on of buildings and 
improvements on the property to eliminate unhealthful, unsanitary, or unsafe condi�ons, lessen 
density, reduce traffic hazards, eliminate uses detrimental to the public welfare, remove, or 
prevent the spread of blight or deteriora�on, or provide land for needed public facili�es.  


• Installa�on, construc�on or reconstruc�on of streets, u�li�es, parks, playgrounds, and other 
improvements necessary for the objec�ves of an urban renewal project  


• The disposi�on of any property acquired in the project area for uses mee�ng the objec�ves of 
the urban renewal project. 


Mixed-use district – a TID with a combina�on of at least two of these uses - residen�al, commercial, and 
industrial uses. Mixed-use TIDs can only include lands proposed for newly plated residen�al use if they 
do not exceed 35%, by area, of the real property in the TID and the residen�al development meets other 
qualifica�ons. 


 








Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time: Tuesday, September 26, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, 
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher 
and Christina Wozniak Scanlon 


 
CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:18 p.m.  
 
Roll Call  
Mayor Swadley called the roll due to technical difficulties with WSTO.  11 alders were present, Reeves was 
absent and excused. 
 
Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
Mayor Swadley stated the meeting had been properly noticed. 
 
Public Comment Period: 
None 


 
Communications and Presentations: 
 Ehlers – Bond Issue 2023A, Lisa Trebatoski (Ehlers) briefly summarized the General Bond issue of 


$6,305,000. 
      USI Insurance Services – Director Gillingham introduced USI representatives, they provided an 


overview of their service and the benefits derived for the city employees. 
 
Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – September 12, 2023 
       B.  Committee Minutes and Reports:  Planning (8/14/23); Joint Review (7/5/22); Finance (8/22/23); 
 Redevelopment Authority (8/9/23); Food Pantry (6/14/23); IDEA (8/16/23) 
       C.  R-157-2023 Authorizing and approving the Mayor's appointment of Lora Klitzke to the Library 
 Board of Trustees, pursuant to 2-127 of the Stoughton Municipal Code. 
 
Motion by Jenson, second by Wozniak Scanlon to approve the consent agenda.  Motion carried 11-0. 
                      
OLD BUSINESS    


 None 
 
 NEW BUSINESS 


R-139-2023 Initial Resolution Authorizing $465,000 General Obligation Bonds for Equipment of the 
Fire Department.  
 







Motion by Schumacher, second by Hirsch to approve R-139-2023 Initial Resolution Authorizing 
$465,000 General Obligation Bonds for Equipment of the Fire Department.  Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-140-2023 Initial Resolution Authorizing $50,000 General Obligation Bonds for Library Projects. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Ligocki to approve R-140-2023 Initial Resolution Authorizing 
$50,000 General Obligation Bonds for Library Projects. Motion carried 11-0.  
 
R-141-2023 Initial Resolution Authorizing $980,000 General Obligation Bonds for Parks and Public 
Grounds Projects.  
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Butler to approve R-141-2023 Initial Resolution Authorizing 
$980,000 General Obligation Bonds for Parks and Public Grounds Projects. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-142-2023 Initial Resolution Authorizing $990,000 General Obligation Bonds for Sewerage Projects. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Hirsch to approve R-142-2023 Initial Resolution Authorizing 
$990,000 General Obligation Bonds for Sewerage Projects. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-143-2023 Initial Resolution Authorizing $3,820,000 General Obligation Bonds for Street 
Improvement Projects. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Majewski to approve R-143-2023 Initial Resolution Authorizing 
$3,820,000 General Obligation Bonds for Street Improvement Projects. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-144-2023 Resolution Directing Publication of Notice to Electors Related to Bond Issues.  
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-144-2023 Resolution Directing Publication of 
Notice to Electors Related to Bond Issues. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-145-2023 Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Establishing Parameters for the Sale of Not to 
Exceed $6,305,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2023A. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-145-2023 Resolution Authorizing the Issuance 
and Establishing Parameters for the Sale of Not to Exceed $6,305,000 General Obligation Corporate 
Purpose Bonds, Series 2023A. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-146-2023 Resolution approving an amendment to the project plan and boundaries of Tax Incremental 
District No. 6. 
 
Motion by Caravello, second by Majewski to approve R-146-2023 Resolution approving an amendment 
to the project plan and boundaries of Tax Incremental District No. 6. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-147-2023 Contract for appraisal services to determine appropriate market rental value for 600 S. 
Fourth St.   
 







Motion by Schumacher, second by Caravello to approve R-147-2023 Contract for appraisal services to 
determine appropriate market rental value for 600 S. Fourth St. Motion carried 11-0.  
 
R-148-2023 Direction to forgo continuing collection efforts regarding June 2023 room tax revenues. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Caravello to approve R-148-2023 Direction to forgo continuing 
collection efforts regarding June 2023 room tax revenues. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-149-2023 Enter into an agreement with Ehlers for a proforma analysis related to 211 S. Water St. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Hirsch to approve R-149-2023 Enter into an agreement with Ehlers 
for a proforma analysis related to 211 S. Water St. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-150-2023 Enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax Increment District No. 10. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Caravello to approve R-150-2023 Enter into an agreement with 
Ehlers to create Tax Increment District No. 10. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-151-2023 Preliminary Condominium Plat for Lot 6 at 51 West Subdivision.   


Motion by Caravello, second by Woznial Scanlon to approve R-151-2023 Preliminary Condominium 
Plat for Lot 6 at 51 West Subdivision. Motion carried 11-0. 


R-152-2023 Final Plat for 839-981 N. Page Street.   


Motion by Caravello, second by Hirsch to approve R-152-2023 Final Plat for 839-981 N. Page 
Street. Motion carried 11-0. 


R-153-2023 Final Plat for Lots 1, 3 and 4 within the 51 West Subdivision.   


Motion by Caravello, second by Wozniak Scanlon to approve R-153-2023 Final Plat for Lots 1, 3, and 4 
within the 51 West Subdivision. Motion carried 11-0. 


R-154-2023 Conditional Use for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (restaurant/tavern) at 210 S. 
Water Street.  


Motion by Caravello, second by Wozniak Scanlon to approve R-154-2023 Conditional Use for an 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (restaurant/tavern) at 210 S. Water Street. Motion carried 11-0.  


R-155-2023 Land Division at 1450 Pleasant Hill Road, Town of Dunkirk.   


Motion by Caravello, second by Jenson to approve R-155-2023 Land Division at 1450 Pleasant Hill 
Road, Town of Dunkirk. Motion carried 11-0. 


R-156-2023 Acceptance of Public Improvements for 51 West Development Phase II and Phase III. 


Motion by Majewski, second by Wozniak Scanlon to approve R-156-2023 Acceptance of Public 
Improvements for 51 West Development Phase II and Phase III.  Motion carried 11-0. 


R-158-2023 Approval to change health insurance broker to USI Insurance Services. 







Motion by Schumacher, second by Majewski to approve R-158-2023 Approval to change health 
insurance broker to USI Insurance Services. Motion carried 11-0.      
    


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by Jenson, second by Majewski to adjourn.  Motion carried 11-0. 8:34 p.m. 


 


Respectfully submitted, 


Candee Christen 
City Clerk 








 1 


COMMISSION ON AGING MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, August 1, 2023 


Stoughton Area Senior Center 
 


Present:  Lou Havlik, Barb Manson, Bob McGeever, Faith Schuck, David Sharpe, Sue Wollin 
Staff Present: Cindy McGlynn, Hollee Camacho  
Absent & Excused: Roz Gausman, Lisa Reeves, Jeanne Schwass-Long, Sue Springman, David Thomas 
 
Call to order: L. Havlik called the meeting to order at 11:07 AM.   
 
Communications: Passed around a card from Kristin Ott thanking members for her gift. 
Welcomed Marcia Standard our new Administrative Assistant. COA members are familiar with 
Marcia from when she served as COA representative for the Town of Albion. Cindy shared that 
Marcia is doing great and fits in very well with staff. Marcia enjoys the position; says staff is great 
and leadership is amazing. 
 
July Minutes: Moved by S. Wollin, seconded by B. McGeever to approve; passed unanimously.   
 
Construction Update:  
 We are still waiting on chairs for the annex space next door and the installation of 


programmable door locks.  
 We will have an Open House of the space on August 16 at 1pm. 
 We working on improving the lighting in the Yahara Room.  
 
Accreditation Update: 
 Our first re-accreditation meeting was held last month. Cindy brought in a sample binder for 


COA members interested in looking at the paperwork. 
 The committee is wonderful and members have already signed up for the different segments.  
 Staff is excited to get started and to work through steps to improving the Center. 
 
Director Comments: C. McGlynn 
 Cindy encouraged members to sign-in using the new database, SchedulesPlus. New sign-in 


screens and scanners are now installed in the annex too. Hollee has been working with the staff 
at SchedulesPlus to learn new features like managing the loan closet, running reports, tracking 
meal orders and creating route sheets. 


 Currently ping pong, line dancing, qigong, stretch class, Stepping On and some presentations 
are using the new annex space. We look forward to our order of more chairs so we can begin 
showing the movie and holding larger classes there too. 


 We’ll be selling Chose’s Coney Dogs next Thursday at Rotary Parks’ Gazebo Musikk event, and 
will have an ice cream social/concert with the city band on August 15 outside along the river. 


 
Committee Reports: Cindy handed out the new list of committee assignments. It may take some 
time for committees to meet since staff are working to fit in accreditation meetings too. 
 







 2 


Legislative Update:  
• The City is beginning the CIP Budget Process. Part of the Senior Center plan is to begin 


discussing options for expanding parking. 
• Commission discussed the impact state funding increases may have on the City budget. 


These funds are intended for street and emergency services. Though it is certainly 
encouraging knowing the City has more funds to work with along with potential 
opportunities from rate of construction growth.  


• For the City’s upcoming budget Cindy will request additional case management staff time. 
 
Meeting Adjourned: Moved by B. McGeever, seconded by F. Schuck to adjourn the meeting. Carried 
unanimously.  Meeting adjourned at 11:39 AM by L. Havilk. 
 
Next Meeting:  Tuesday, September 5, 2023 at 11:00 AM  







Public Works Committee  
Thursday, August 17th, 2023 
(Virtual Meeting) 
 
Members Present: Tom Majewski, Kay Rashka, Lisa Reeves, Ben Heili, Jordan Tilleson & Mayor 
Tim Swadley  


Absent/Excused: Christina Scanlon  


Staff:  Planning Director Rodney Scheel & Public Works Director Brett Hebert  
 
Guests:  
 
Call to Order:  Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:02 PM 


 


1) Communications:    


 
2)    Approve July 20th, 2023 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Reeves to approve the minutes and 
seconded by Rashka. Motion carried 6-0.    


 


New Business:  


3) Amundson Parkway Project Update: 
 
Director Hebert updated the Committee on the Amundson Parkway Pulverization demo. The 
project has been completed and staff will be evaluation the asphalt zipper demo for potential future 
uses & cost savage.  
 
4) Road Construction Update: 
 
Director Hebert updated the Committee on all 2023 road construction projects.  
 
5) Discuss 2024 Yard Waste Site Fees: 
  
Director Hebert outlined the projected operating costs for the Yard Waste Site in 2023, which 
shows an operating loss at year end. Director Hebert is proposing a $5.00 increase for the resident 
and non-resident fee schedule.  
 
Motion by Reeves to recommend to approve and go to Council, seconded by Tilleson. Motion 
carried 6-0 
 
6) Public Works CIP Review: 
 
Director Hebert presented the 2024 CIP proposed budget to the Committee.  
  
7) Future Agenda Items: 







 
a) Discuss the Rental of City Property for Lease for Agricultural Planting and Harvesting 
b) Pedestrian Hill Surface Remediation 
c) Tree Commission Structure  


 
9) Adjourn: Motion by Reeves to adjourn, seconded by Tilleson to adjourn the meeting at 
7:15pm. Motion carried 6-0 
 
Respectfully submitted by Jen Wagner 8/23/2023 





		01 COA Minutes  AUGUST 2023

		02 PW Min August 17, 2023






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to appoint Michael Laures as the agent for 
Kwik Trip Inc., dba Kwik Trip #738, located at 1231 E Main St. Stoughton


 
File Number: R-159-2023 Date Introduced:   October 10, 2023 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received a Schedule for Successor of Agent and Schedule 
for Appointment of Agent for Kwik Trip Inc. and 


WHEREAS, the application was forwarded to the Police Chief for review, now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to appoint Michael Laures the agent for Kwik Trip 
#738.


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:   Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 


Committee Action: Public Safety recommends approval to Common Council unanimously on September 27, 
2023

























		05e R-118-2023 Agent Change - KPW TRU by Hilton

		05e KPW TRU By Hilton Agent Change Puree Hill redacted










 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  
STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s 
Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5592538, Dane County Registry 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 5 - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 
 
File Number: 


 
R-122-2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 25, 2023 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has received a request from the property owner of Lot 141 of John 
Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr) to release a platted public utility easement; and 


WHEREAS, the release will consist of releasing the 6-foot easement that runs along, approximately 118-
feet, of the west property boundary, not including the northern 6-feet of the west property boundary, with 
other public utility easements located elsewhere on the parcel remaining as currently recorded; and 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has no existing utility infrastructure located with the platted easement to 
be released; and 


WHEREAS, the proposed release has been reviewed by Stoughton Utilities staff and has been determined 
to be acceptable to the utility; and   


WHEREAS, on May 15, 2023, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met to consider and approve the release 
of a platted public utility easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View 
Dr), recorded as Document No. 5592538, Dane County Registry, and recommend approval to the 
Stoughton Common Council; now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Stoughton Common Council that that the Stoughton Utilities Director 
be hereby directed to agree to the recording of a partial release of a platted public utility easement on Lot 
141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5592538, 
Dane County Registry. 


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    
Mayor Tim Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







     
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383  Stoughton, 
WI  53589-0383   


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886    
 


 


Date:    
   


October 4, 2023  


To:      Candee Christen   
Stoughton City Clerk  


From:    Jill M. Weiss, P.E.  
Stoughton Utilities Director  


Subject:   Items for the October 10, 2023 Stoughton Common Council Meeting Packet   
 


Item from the May 15, 2023 meetings of the Stoughton Utilities Committee are enclosed.  Please include 
these items in the agenda and packet for the July 25, 2023 meeting of the Stoughton Common Council.  


Business:  
1. Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s 


Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5592538, Dane County 
Registry Encl.   


 


cc:   David R. Erdman - Chairman – Stoughton Utilities Committee   


Alderperson Regina M. Hirsch - President – Stoughton Common Council   


Mayor Tim B. Swadley - Mayor – City of Stoughton   


Brian R. Hoops -  Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director   







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, May 15, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  3 


Stoughton Electric Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin:  


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Electric Utility Annual Report filed with the Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin.  Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Water Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Water Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin.  Discussion followed. 


Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin 


Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5618013, Dane County Registry: 


Stoughton Utilities staff discussed a customer request for a partial release of a platted public utility easement. 


Staff informed the committee that Stoughton Utilities does not have any existing utility infrastructure located in 


the easement and that there were no plans to utilize the easement in the future.  Staff noted that the Dane County 


Registration Document No. 5592538 included on the meeting notice was incorrect and should be Document No. 


5618013.  Staff also noted that following attorney review it was recommended that an illustration of the easement 


to be released should be included in the documentation prior to approval by the Common Council.  Discussion 


followed.   


Motion by Chenoweth, seconded by Hirsch, to authorize the partial release of a platted public utility easement 


on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5618013, 


Dane County Registry, and recommend approval of the partial easement release following the addition of an 


illustration of the easement to be released to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 


5 to 0.   


Wastewater 2022 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and 


discussed the 2022 CMAR.  Staff informed the committee that annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form 


(eCMAR) is required to be completed no later than June 30.  Staff further informed the committee that there were 


no concerns noted in the CMAR.  Discussion followed.  


Motion by Payton, seconded by Jenson, to approve the 2022 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report and 


recommend the approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council at 


their May 23, 2023 meeting.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Revisions to the City of Stoughton Investment Policy:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a 


proposed policy that was drafted by City of Stoughton staff with input and review from Stoughton Utilities staff.  


Staff explained the proposed policy would replace procedures currently specified in the Stoughton code of 


ordinances and how the proposed policy would impact future new investments as well as the information that 


would be presented to the Utilities Committee at upcoming meetings.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Jenson, seconded by Payton, to approve the revised City of Stoughton Investment Policy and 


recommend approval to the Stoughton Finance Committee and Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried 


4 to 1 with Chenoweth voting No. 


Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that the annual 


water Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) will be presented at the June meeting.  Committee members 


requested that a comparison of Stoughton Utilities electric rates with the rates of neighboring investor-owned 


utilities be provided at an upcoming meeting, and that a tour of the wastewater treatment facility be offered prior 



bhoops

Highlight







600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886


Date:  May 9, 2023 


To: Stoughton Utilities Committee 


From:  Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject: Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 141 of John 


Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 


5592538, Dane County Registry 


Stoughton Utilities has received a request from the property owner of Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin 


Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr) to release a platted public utility easement.  This release will consist 


of releasing the 6-foot easement that runs along the full length, approximately 124-feet, of the west 


property boundary.  Public utility easements located elsewhere on the parcel will remain as currently 


recorded. 


Stoughton Utilities has no existing utility infrastructure located within the platted easement that has been 


requested to be released. The proposed release of the public utility easement has been reviewed by 


Stoughton Utilities staff and has been determined to be acceptable to the utility.  It is currently being 


reviewed by the Stoughton City Attorney as to form. 


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and authorize the partial release of a 


platted public utility easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), 


recorded as Document No. 5592538, Dane County Registry, with such changes necessary to finalize the 


release as are acceptable to and recommended by our legal counsel, and recommend approval of the partial 


easement release to the Stoughton Common Council at their May 23, 2023 meeting.   







In accordance with section 


236.293 of the State of Wisconsin Statutes, the City of Stoughton, 


Dane County, Wisconsin does hereby release, discharge and 


abandon all of right, title and interest in and to: 


See Exhibit “A” for legal description and Exhibit “B” for a 


depiction of the Easement Area to be released. 


This release of easement does not release or modify any other 


easements set forth on the recorded document referenced in Exhibit 


A.   


This release of easement is made for the benefit of all current 


owners of the above described property, including future 


owners/heirs. 


Authorized by Resolution Number _________________, adopted 


by the City of Stoughton Common Council on _______________, 


2023.


Dated this ________ day of ______________, 2023. 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, 


acting through Stoughton Utilities 


By:____________________________________ 


Name: Jill Weiss, Utilities Director  


  Acknowledgement 


The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ____________, 2023, by the 


above-named Jill Weiss, known to me to be the Utilities Director of the City of Stoughton, on behalf of 


said City of Stoughton. 


(signature)____________________________     Notary Commission Expires: ___ /___ /______ 


(print)_______________________________ 


RELEASE OF PLATTED 


UTILITY EASEMENT 


Record this document with the 


Register of Deeds 


Name and return address: 


Andrew Hoffman 


2108 Wood View Dr.  


Stoughton, Wi, 53589 


Parcel Identification Number: 


281/0511-062-4471-6 







Exhibit A 


Easement area to be released: 


A 117.66-foot-long and 6-foot-wide utility easement starting at the southwest corner, as depicted on lot


141, John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates, as recorded on February 18, 1994, in vol. 56-180B Plats, Page 


555 as document no. 5618013, in the office of the Register of Deeds for Dane County, Wisconsin, and 


more specifically:  


The west 6 feet from front of to 6 feet south of the back of said lot 141, John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake


Estates. 







Exhibit B  
This easement area to be released is located in the parcel described as the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) 
of the Northwest Quarter (NW1/4), Section 6, Town 5 North, Range 11 East, City of Stoughton, Dane 
County, Wisconsin. 







Exhibit C 


John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates Plat 


Doc. No. 5618013 


See attachment. 











City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE 
STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 141 of John 


Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5592538, Dane


County Registry 


Committee Action: Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 5 - 0 


Fiscal Impact: None 


File Number: R-xxx-2023 Date Introduced: July 25, 2023 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has received a request from the property owner of Lot 141 of John 


Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr) to release a platted public utility easement; and 


WHEREAS, the release will consist of releasing the 6-foot easement that runs along, approximately 


118-feet, of the west property boundary, not including the northern 6-feet of the west boundary,
with other public utility easements located elsewhere on the parcel remaining as currently recorded; 


and 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has no existing utility infrastructure located with the platted easement to 


be released; and 


WHEREAS, the proposed release has been reviewed by Stoughton Utilities staff and has been determined 


to be acceptable to the utility; and   


WHEREAS, on May 15, 2023, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met to consider and approve the 


release of a platted public utility easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 


Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5592538, Dane County Registry, and recommend


approval to the Stoughton Common Council; now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Stoughton Common Council that that the Stoughton Utilities 


Director be hereby directed to agree to the recording of a partial release of a platted public utility 


easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as 


Document No. 5592538, Dane County Registry.


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote: 


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto


Mayor Tim Swadley Date 


Council Action: ☐ Override Vote: 





		06 R-122-2023 Resolution - Easement Amendment

		06a UC Transmittal to Council

		06b Utilities - Easement Amendment










R-160-2023 
Resolution Requesting Exemption from Dane County Library Tax 


 
WHEREAS the Dane County Board has established a county library and levies a county library tax as 


authorized under Section 43.57 (3) of the Wisconsin Statutes, and 
 
WHEREAS the Dane County Library Board has determined that the library serving the city of 


Stoughton meets the minimum standards of operation established by the County Board (RES 
185, 2011-2012; RES 98, 2013-2014; RES 233, 2016-2017) in compliance with Section 43.11 
(3) (d) of the Wisconsin Statutes, and   


 
WHEREAS Section 43.64 (2) (b) of the Wisconsin Statutes provides that a village or city which levies 


a tax for public library service and appropriates and expends for a library fund as defined by 
s.43.52 (1) during the year for which the county tax levy is made a sum at least equal to the 
county tax rate in the prior year multiplied by the equalized valuation of property in the city or 
village for the current year, and 


 
WHEREAS the city of Stoughton will appropriate in 2023 and expend in 2024 an amount in excess of 


that calculated above in support of its library, 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the city of Stoughton hereby requests of the Dane 


County Board of Supervisors that the city of Stoughton be exempted from the payment of any 
tax for the support of the County Library Service as provided in Section 43.64 (2). 


 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that confirmed copies of this resolution will be forwarded by the City  


Clerk to the following party: 
 


Tracy Herold, Director 
Dane County Library Service 


herold@dcls.info 
 


Date Passed:_________________ 
 
Vote:_______________________ 
 
 
__________________________________   _______________________________ 
Authorized Signature      Title of Person signing 



mailto:herold@dcls.info





Per 2023 DOR DaneCo EqVal


EXEMPT LIBS 2023 EQ VAL 2024 Min App 2023 App Diff


Villages Belleville 287,834,000 $96,487 $326,233 $229,746


Black Earth 185,893,400 $62,315 $133,657 $71,342


Cambridge 244,190,100 $81,857 $105,000 $23,143


Cross Plains 493,701,500 $165,497 $304,803 $139,306


Deerfield 298,681,800 $100,123 $172,927 $72,804


DeForest 1,630,550,500 $546,589 $680,003 $133,414


Marshall 351,303,100 $117,763 $184,000 $66,237


Mazomanie 213,091,600 $71,432 $95,000 $23,568


McFarland 1,512,459,400 $507,003 $733,000 $225,997


Mount Horeb 1,085,832,200 $363,990 $506,477 $142,487


Oregon 1,770,509,600 $593,505 $892,047 $298,542


Waunakee 2,837,514,400 $951,184 $1,362,123 $410,939


Cities Fitchburg 5,319,407,900 $1,783,157 $2,170,815 $387,658


Madison 40,537,067,500 $13,588,726 $19,806,904 $6,218,178


Middleton 4,257,883,200 $1,427,316 $1,409,912 -$17,404


Monona 1,664,682,800 $558,030 $673,051 $115,021


Stoughton 1,706,623,300 $572,090 $735,107 $163,017


Sun Prairie 5,084,169,000 $1,704,301 $1,830,829 $126,528


Verona 3,853,228,800 $1,291,669 $1,176,822 -$114,847





		07 R-160-2023 2024 City of Stoughton exemption resolution

		Resolution Requesting Exemption from Dane County Library Tax



		07b 2024 MIN APP



